
MINUTES 
 

CITY OF DELANO 
CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

April 7, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Vallejo called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 1015 – 

 

 
Avenue. 

INVOCATION 
 
Mayor Vallejo asked for a moment of silence. 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
Councilman Pascual led the flag salute. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Council members present:  Aguirre, Chavez, Morris, Pascual, Vallejo 
Council members absent:  none 
 

OFFICIALS PRESENT 
 
City Manager Reyna, City Attorney Garcia, City Clerk Kraft, Finance Director Rios, Police Chief 
DeRosia, City Engineer Dowling, Human Resources Director Zamudio 
 

PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
 Proclamation:  DMV/Donate Life California Month – April 2014 
 Proclamation:  Relay for Life, April 12-13, 2014 
 
 Presentation:  Brown Act and Conduct of City Council Meetings 
 Mr. Garcia gave a power point presentation of the basics of the Brown Act and a brief review of the open 
meeting laws. 
 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Cornel Markham asked what is within the Council’s jurisdiction and stated that the mayor will not talk to 
him without armed police present. 
 
Maria Rodriguez stated the restrooms at Cesar Chavez park were destroyed and there is no water there.  
She asked when the restrooms will be rebuild. 
 
Ms. Conner stated she has some concerns about the presentation regarding the Brown Act and that Mr. 
Garcia should have another presentation to explain the terms and provide more detail. 
 
Richard Markham, 315 Dover Drive, stated that, regarding the presentation of the Brown Act,  all the 
attorney is doing is protecting the council.  He stated that council passes everything on to city manager 



and that council should answer questions from the public.  He asked what is being done about shopping 
carts on the streets.  He stated that council needs to be accessible to the public.  He stated he had asked for 
a bench on Garces.  Mayor Vallejo spoke for the record and informed Mr. Markham that he needs to 
speak to the city manager who will determine what department needs to deal with the questions or with 
taking care of the problems. 
 
No name given, asked if the engineer has a degree.  She stated there are problems with the street near 
Pacific Tire.  She stated she is still waiting for a return call from mayor. 
 
Isabel Miranda asked if the engineer will be able to correct the street near Pacific Tire. 
 
Roberto Ibarra, 1815 –  Avenue, stated council is making decisions without asking the public and there is 
no way to get information.  He asked who has jurisdiction regarding Garces Highway and noted that 
Bakersfield is having work done on Highway 58.  He asked when we will have a town hall meeting.  He 
stated that water was running along 

 

 and Albany.  Mr. Ibarra stated police should have a camera around 
their neck to cut the number of complaints and frivolous lawsuits. 

Gloria Herrera stated that she took the presentation regarding the Brown Act and the statements regarding 
intimidation as personal and that the attorney is trying to scare the public away.  She stated that no one 
ever got back to her about street sweeping and how the cost got on the utility bill. 
 
Javier Cruz stated that the only ones to respond to him are the city manager and chief of police.  He stated 
that city workers are eating in their trucks.  He stated that council doesn’t listen to the people. 
 
David Marino, president of the Delano Guardians, stated the  Brown Act sounds very intimidating and 
this in not democracy.  He stated the Delano Guardians was founded because people in the community 
want answers and they are here to collaborate.  He asked if the city looked for grants for solutions to the 
water problems.  He stated that no one in the Delano Guardians comes here to intimidate, but the city 
attorney intimidates and people are afraid to talk. 
 
Suzann Villaruz, 1808 Terrace Drive, announced there will be an event at Cesar Chavez park on April 19, 
and organizers expect about 200 kids.  She asked that staff not water as they will be hiding eggs.  She 
stated that former Representative Bill Thomas got the money for the road projects in Bakersfield.  She 
thanked the city attorney for his presentation and noted that all governmental agencies follow the Brown 
Act.  She stated there needs to be a sign on north bound Jefferson Street at Cecil Avenue for a right turn 
lane.  She stated the street at Pacific Tire needs trees or a hedge in the divider.  Ms. Villaruz noted that the 
city attorney did not scare off anyone since they all spoke this evening. 
 
Valerie Gorospe, Center on Race, Poverty, and the Environment asked what phone number people should 
use to call council members. 
 
David Vivas, 925 Jefferson Street, announced there will be a community Good Friday service April 18, 
6:00 p.m.  He stated that council members all have jobs, so they may not be able to return calls within 24 
hours.  He noted that the Brown Act is not meant to intimidate.  Its purpose is to insure there is order at 
public meetings and everyone has a voice.  He stated the public should not take anything to be 
intimidating.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1) Authorization to waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution in its entirety and 
consenting to the reading of such ordinances or resolutions by title only 



 
2) Warrant Register in the amount of $2,952,329.71 (2 payroll periods) 

 
3) Minutes of regular City Council meeting of March 17, 2014 
 
4) Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Lexis-Nexis to provide 

inmate law library software for the Delano Modified Community Correctional Facility 
(MCCF) and allocate funds from the California Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation (CDCR) contract agreement to pay for yearly prison law library software 
subscription     Agreement No. 2014-27 

 
5) Approve renewal service agreement with Central Valley Occupational Medical Group to 

perform medical services     Agreement No. 2014-28 
 
6) Approve the purchase or reimbursement of purchase for fifteen (15) golf cart batteries to 

be replaced in City owned golf carts at the Delano Municipal Golf Course 
 
7) Resolution No. 2014-29 of the City of Delano adopting the Kern Multi-Jurisdiction 

Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
8) Ratification of emergency sewer line repair project performed by Sierra Construction & 

Excavation for $22,500 (High Street & 
 

 Avenue) 

9) Acceptance of the improvements for the 2013 CDBG Tennis Court Rehabilitation Project 
and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion 

 
10) Acceptance of the improvements for the 2013 CDBG Water Main Replacement Project – 

 
 Avenue and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion 

11) Acceptance of the improvements for the Modified Community Correctional Facility Site 
Preparation Project and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion 

 
12) Acceptance of the improvements for the Modified Community Correctional Facility 

Security Upgrades and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion 
 

Roberto Ibarra asked that item #5 be pulled for discussion.  Councilwoman Morris asked that item #2 be 
pulled for discussion. 
 
Moved by Councilman Pascual, seconded by Councilman Chavez, and unanimously carried to approve 
the Consent Agenda with items #2 and #5 pulled for discussion. 
 
Item #2)  Councilwoman Morris noted that an item on the warrant register showed a purchase by Craig 
Wilson of license plates for $500 and asked what that is.  Ms. Reyna answered it is for license plate 
frames that will be distributed to employees as part of the employee relation program Good to Great. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Chavez and unanimously carried to approve 
item #2. 
 
Item #5)  Mr. Ibarra asked who the medical services will be for. 
 



Ms. Zamudio explained that Central Valley Occupational Medical Group is not open to the public.  They 
perform employment related services including pre-employment examinations, worker’s comp treatment, 
and drug testing. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Chavez and unanimously carried to approve 
item #5. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
No items 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

13) Make appointment of representative and alternate to represent the City of Delano at the 
Kern Council of Governments 

 
Moved by Councilman Aguirre, seconded by Councilman Chavez and unanimously carried to appoint 
Councilman Pascual as the representative to KernCOG. 
 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilman Aguirre and unanimously carried to appoint 
Mayor Vallejo as the alternate representative to KernCOG. 
 

14) Possible acquisition or lease of property owned by the United States Government, located 
south of Garces Highway and west of Melcher Avenue; (Voice of America) 

 
Mr. Garcia stated this item will be discussed in closed session.  It is listed under regular agenda to allow 
for any public comments. 
 
Suzann Villaruz stated she is excited to see the city contemplating acquisition of this site.  She has 
concerns that the buildings should be preserved because of VOA’s place in history.  She noted its flora is 
natural and at the site students could learn what the valley used to look like. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 
Ms. Reyna reported that the cost to modify the modular building at 

 

 Avenue and Lexington Street for use 
as a temporary senior center is estimated at $35,000; annual facility costs and staff time would be 
$40,000; for the county to provide staff for three hours per day and food to that location would be 
$25,000 annually.  The start-up cost would be $100,000 and the annual cost would be $65,000.  A survey 
of seniors was done at the Ellington Center with 60 seniors surveyed.  Twelve of those seniors stated they 
would attend at the west side center.  It would take about three months to convert the building.  Staff is 
preparing an RFP for design of the new center to be built at the site of the center destroyed by fire.  The 
entire project would take 18 to 24 months. 

COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
Councilwoman Morris

 

 reported on the League of California Cities Communities Services Policy 
Committee meeting she attended April 4, in Ontario.  Some of the issues discussed included 
homelessness, e-cigarettes, and massage parlors. 

Councilman Chavez

 

 stated he is also concerned about the street near Pacific Tire and that it should be 
more driver friendly. 



Councilman Pascual
 

 no items 

Councilman Aguirre
 

 no items 

Mayor Vallejo

 

 encouraged everyone to support Relay for Life and announced there will be a street fair 
April 22 to kick off Cinco de Mayo. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilwoman Morris, and unanimously carried that the 
City Council adjourn to Closed Session at 7:13 p.m.  The City Clerk was excused.  Mayor Vallejo was 
appointed Acting City Clerk.  The City Attorney and City Manager were asked to remain. 
 

15) Conference with real property negotiators Maribel Reyna and Bonny Garcia regarding 
possible acquisition or lease of property owned by the United States Government, located 
south of Garces Highway and west of Melcher Avenue; (Voice of America) pursuant to 
govt. code section 54956.8 

 
RETURN TO GENERAL SESSION 

 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and unanimously carried to 
reconvene in Open Session at 7:43 p.m.  Mr. Garcia provided a report on closed session as follows: 
 
15)  Information was provided.  No reportable action taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilwoman Morris, and unanimously carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:43 p.m. 
 
______________________ 
Phyllis A. Kraft, City Clerk 


	CALL TO ORDER
	INVOCATION
	FLAG SALUTE
	ROLL CALL
	OFFICIALS PRESENT
	PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS
	ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
	CONSENT AGENDA
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	REGULAR AGENDA
	DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
	COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	RETURN TO GENERAL SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT

